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The boundaries of that part of the Cumberland and Oxford Canal to be
nominated to the National Register are as follows: Beginning at Sebago
Lake Basin in the Town of Standish, the canal runs for 12.25 miles south-
erly to Conant Street in the Town of Westbrook. The Eastern and Western
boundaries are 500 feet on each side from the center line of the canal,
with the exception of the area at Gambo Lock where the Eastern boundary
widens to include the Oriental Powder Mills.

The above described boundaries encompass an area of 1,525+ acres.

The Cumberland and Oxford Canal was designed to open the interior of
southern Maine to development by connecting existing bodies of water with
Portland Harbor.. It-was to.run from Waterford in Oxford County, Maine to
Portland in Cumberland County, Maine. (The section of the canal jn Oxford
County was never executed, however.) Land suryeying began in 1825; exca-
vation began in 1828 and was completed in 1836. The canal opened on June
1, 1830. The entire distance opened to navidation was 38 miles. Eighteen
miles of this made use of existing waterways: from Harrison at the head
of Long Lake, across Long Lake, down the Songo River and across Sebago
Lake to Sebago Lake Basin. From the foot of Sebago Lake Basin the canal
followed a southerly and southeasterly route along the western side of the
Presumpscot River to Westbrook, turned easterly across the countryside to
Stroudwater, and from there followed a course along the eastern bank of
the Fore River to the foot of Clark Street at the Portland waterfront.

The canal was dug by hand. The earth removed from its bed was piled
to one side to form a tow path. The canal was 30 feet wide at the top,
10 feet wide at the bottom and had an average depth of three-and<one-half
feet. Because Sebago Lake is 280 feet above sea level, 27 locks with an
average 1ift of about ten feet each were necessary. Each lock was 80 feet
Tong and 10 feet wide. .The locks were built of fieldstone or sometimes
of cut granite and lined with wooden planking. Two wooden gates were
mounted at either end of each lock.

The Cumberland and Oxford Canal had a thriving existence for- twenty:
years, until 1850 when railroads began to take away its business. The
canal was taken over by the Canal Bank and sold to private owners in 1859
who operated it until 18J2 when it closed.

Most of the well weathered canal bed is visible today, and one can
follow the course of the Cumberland and Oxford Canal for seventy per cent
of its original length.

At the foot of Sebago Lake Basin, Wescott Lock is still intact. Cut

outs in the granite walls show where the gates were mounted. From here the

canal flows south to a new power station. The original canal bed has been
widened and now called the Eel Weir Canal; it is used today as the channel
of the Presumpscot River by the S. D. Warren Paper Company. This is the
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only section of the canal in which water still flows. At the Eel Weir Power
Station, the original canal bed leaves the Eel Weir Canal and continues south
into what is now North Gorham Pond. The Steep Falls Lock has been obliterated
by the power station, but the partial stonework of Blake and Middle Dam Locks
is visible. The canal then flows into North Gorham Pond. (Originally the
canal and river beds were separate here as in Dundee Pond and Tower sections
of the Presumscot River, but modern damming for power stations has flooded
them both, enlarging the river, so that it now appears that the canal flows
jnto the river.) Harding Lock is underwater now. At the village of Great
Falls (North Gorham), the canal leaves the pond and runs along the western
bank of the Presumpscot for one-half mile where it again enters the river at
Dundee Pond. Great Falls Lock is covered by a road; some stones from Whipple
Lock are visible. There is some question as to whether there were two locks
at Whitney Falls, as the accounts of the canal say. Only one lock is visible.
From this lock, the canal flows through what is now Dundee Pond. Sandbank
Lock is underwater but is visible when the Presumpscot River is drained each
year. At Dundee Power Station, the canal leaves the pond and runs south
along the western bank of the Presumpscot for a mile and a quarter. The re-
mains of Warren Lock are visible. Below the covered bridge on Hurricane

Road (Harry Cane on the map), partial stonework of Upper Well and preserved
Lower Kemp Locks remain. The canal bed and its well-rounded bankings are
clearly visible throughout this stretch.

Below Lower Kemp Lock, the canal enters the river and continues in the
river for one-and-one-quarter miles. It leaves the river just above Newhall
Road. From here southeast to Westbrook the canal bed runs beside the
Presumpscot River and is clearly visible for the entire six-and-one-half
miles. A drop in the canal bed below Newhall Road is Gambo Lock. (If there
was only one lock at Whitney Falls, there may have been another lock at
Gambo Falls, now covered by Newhall Road.) There are openings in the canal
tow-path here, walled in cut granite, used to let water into a Targe powder
mill complex between the canal and the Presumpscot.

Here at Gambo Falls was the Oriental Powder Mills which was founded
in 1818 and by 1875 had become the fourth largest producer of gunpowder in
the United States. Lester Laflin and Edmond Fowler were the founders and
first proprieters. The Cumberland and Oxford Canal proved to be a great
boom to the powder mills for here was safe and inexpensive transportation
to Portland Harbor.

The Oriental Powder Company ceased operations during the first decade
of the 20th century following two serious accidents, one in 1901 and the
other in 1904. The cost to rebuild after two great explosions would have
been too great so the operation closed.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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Today parts of the foundation of the saltpetre press and corning mills
remain at Gambo Falls.

Above the Town of Little Falls, Soule Lock is covered by a road, but
below the town, Little Falls is in good condition and Upper Malison and Lower
Malison Locks are indicated by drops in the canal bed. The fieldstone end
foundations of the aqueduct which carried the canal over the Little River
still stand. From the Little River, the canal runs south to Conant Street
in Westbrook without a lock and was referred to as the "Long Level". This
section has survived in remarkably good condition since it runs through a
relatively inaccessible area of pasture land and woods.

GPO 921.724
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Y SRt -
. The Cumberland and Oxford Canal was thewonly canal of any length -

built in Maine. It was one of many canals constructed throughout the

eastern United States in the first third of the Nineteenth Century.

The Cumberland and Oxford Canal is an example of state involvement
in the improvement of transportation and in economic development. The
possibility of building a canal from Sebago Lake to Portland was under
investigation as early as 1791, but nothing was accomplished until the
1820's. In 1821, the state granted a charter to several prominent resi-
dents of Portland and neighboring towns under the name of the "Cumberland
and Oxford Canal Corporation" to construct a canal. Holmes Hutﬁﬁin on,
an engineer who worked on the Erie Canal, was hired .to survey the route.
The state legislature authorized the building of the canal, granting the
Canal Corporation the right of eminent domain and the right to use water
from existing sources. In 1821, the state Tegislature established a
lottery to raise money for the canal. When this did not raise sufficient
funds, the state chartered the Canal Bank, which dis still in existance
today, to finance the canal.

The Cumberland and Oxford Canal played an important role in the
economic development of Cumberland and Oxford Counties before the advent
of the railroads. It supplied the City of Portland with much needed raw
materials. Produce, lumber, shooks, hoops and firewood were carried
down - the canal; groceries, furniture and manufactured products were carri-
ed inland. The Canal Corporation employed many men as lock keepers and
repair personnel. Mill complexes were built along the canal route, using
water diverted from the canal for power. For twenty years, the canal was
a thriving transportation network.

A unique type of canal boat was developed for use on the canal.
They had sleeker 1ines than most canal boats and were equipped with
twin center boards and two collapsing masts (for bridge clearance) so
that they could sail across Sebago and Long Lakes and in Portland Harbor.
At one time as many as 150 boats operated along the canal. The.canal
boats delivered firewood to the islands in Casco Bay and occasioha]]y
they even sailed as far as Boston, Massachusetts.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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Most of the canal system is visible today. Wescott Lock, Lower Kemp
Lock, Little Falls Lock, the aqueduct stonework, the sluiceways and mill
complex at Gambo Falls and the canal bed and tow path at the "Long Level"
are in especially good condition. The masonry of several other locks is
visible. The Cumberland and Oxford Canal is a valuable example of Nineteenth
Century engineering and transportation enterprise.

The canal is an important part of Maine's heritage. No longer func-
tioning as a transportation network, the canal has a new role today. The
area through which the canal passes remains Targely untouched by commercial
and residential development. Because of its close proximity to Sebago Lake,
the Presumpscot River, the Fore River and the Stroudwater Historic District,
the canal provides a unique opportunity for the establishment of historic,
recreational, and wildlife areas. Proposals for such a park system are now
under study.
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